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Brothers, Sheila C.

From: Smith, William T.
Sent: Monday, November 4, 2019 2:47 PM
To: Brothers, Sheila C.
Subject: Medical Lab Sciences major pre-req change - approved

Proposal Name: Medical Laboratory Sciences BHS – Change  

This is a recommendation that the University Senate approve the change in admissions language for students entering 
the pre‐Medical Laboratory Sciences program.  Also included with the proposal are changes to Senate Rules 4.2.2.2.1 
(“College of Health Sciences Program”) and 4.2.2.2.5 (“Medical Laboratory Science Admissions Policy”).  

Rationale: The request is in support of having pre‐MLS students be “CHE 105/109” ready.  Students (freshmen) who fall 
into that status should progress through the prerequisite coursework in a timely manner and be ready for the MLS major 
application deadline in the second semester of the sophomore year.   

William T Smith, Associate Professor 
Dept of Electrical and Computer Engineering 
(859) 257‐1009



 
 
 
 
 
 
College of Health Sciences 
Office of the Dean 
123 Wethington Building  
Lexington, KY 40536-0200 
859-218-0860 
www.uky.edu/chs 

To:  Meredith Houlihan 
Health Care Colleges Council 
 

From:  Carl Mattacola, Ph.D. 
 Associate Dean of Academic and Faculty Affairs 
 
Date: January 22, 2019 

Criteria for Admission Change Medical Laboratory Sciences  
 

Attached is a request to change the criteria for admission into the Medical Laboratory 
Sciences Program. Specifically, the request is to require that students entering UK and the 
pre-MLS program have the supporting course work for the equivlent of CHE 105/109. 
Students that enter the pre-MLS program “CHE 105/109 ready” are set up for success 
(i.e., better prepared to meet the requirments of the prerequistes courses) when 
entering their freshman year. Students will then be able to progress through the 
prerequiste curriculum and be prepared for the MLS application deadline in the second 
semester of the sophomore year. This will also keep them on track for graduation from 
the Medical Laboratory Science program in December of the senior year.  
 
The proposal was reviewed and approved by the Department of Clinical Sciences, the 
Academic Affairs Committee of the College of Health Sciences and is being forwarded to 
Office of the Senate Council for review.  
 
  
  

 

  



College of Health Sciences - Academic Affairs Committee 

MEMO         January 18, 2019 
 
TO:  Carl Mattacola, Professor and Associate Dean of Academic Affairs 
FROM: Debbie Kelly – Chair of Academic Affairs 
RE: Academic Affairs review of MLS proposal 
 
Dear Dr. Mattacola, 
The Academic Affairs (AA) Committee has thoroughly reviewed the proposal submitted by Kim 
Campbell regarding the MLS change in pre-reqs. As a result, the Academic Affairs committee 
recommends approval of this program change. Thanks for the opportunity to review this 
proposal.  Please let me know if I can help clarify anything regarding this recommendation. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Deborah G. Kelly PT, MSED, DPT, Chair – CHS Academic Affairs Committee (2016-19) 
 
 









CHANGE UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE PROGRAM 

I chair/director6 from which individual courses will be used. 
Current 

i. D Single course in home unit:
.. D Multiple courses in home unit. II. 

... D Single course outside home unit. Ill. 

Proposed 

D Single course in home unit:

D Multiple courses in home unit.

D Single course outside home unit.

· D Multiple courses outside home unit. IV.
v. D Course(s) inside & outside home unit.

D Multiple courses outside home unit.

D Course(s) inside & outside home unit.

4b Provide the Bulletin language about GCCR below.

5. Other Course Changes

l Will the college-level requirements change? (If "Yes," indicate and note the specificSa ___ changes in the grid below. If "No," indicate and proceed to question Sc.) 
Current Proposed 

D Standard college requirement D Standard colleg� requirement

D Specific course D Specific course

Prefix & Credit 
Nmbr Hrs Title Prefix & Credit

Nmbr Hrs 
Title Course Status7 

Select one .. .. 
Select one ... . 
Select one .. .. 

Sb 
j 

Will the exi�ting language in th_ e Bulletin about college-level requirements change? [ Yes  ] No D If

"Yes," provide the new language below. 

Sc 
Will the pre-major or pre-professional course requirements change? {If "Yes," 
indicate and note the specific changes in the grid below. If "No," indicate and 
proceed to question Se.) 

Prefix & Credit 
Nmbr Hrs 

Current 

Title Prefix & Credit 

Nmbr Hrs 

Proposed 

Title 

I YesO No cg] 

Course Status8 

Select one .. .. 

Select one .. .. 

Select one .. .. 
Select one .. .. 
Select one .. .. 

6 A clean may submit a letter only when there is no educational unit below the college level, i.e. there are no departments/schools.
7 Use the drop-down list to indicate if the course is a new course ("new"), an existing course that will change ("change"), or if the

course is an existing course that will not change ("no change"). 
8 Use the drop-down list to indicate if the course is new, exists but will change, or exists but will not change.
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CHANGE UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE PROGRAM 

Sd I Provide the Bulletin language about pre-major or pre-professional courses below. 

Se I 
Will the major's core course requirements change? {If "Yes," indicate and note the I Yes D specific changes in the grid below. If "No," indicate and proceed to question Sg.) 
If "Yes," note the specific changes in the grid below. 

Current Proposed 

Prefix & Credit 
Nmbr Hrs Title Prefix & Credit

Nmbr Hrs 
Title Course Status9 

Sf 

Sg 

l 
Provid

-
e the Bulletin language for major core course requirements. 

I
Will the guided electives change? {If "Yes," indicate and not; the specific chang�s in� I Y D the grid below. If "No," indicate and proceed to question Si.) _ � 

es 

Current _____ Proposed 

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
Title Course Status10 

9 Use the drop-down list to indicate if the course is new, exists but will change, or exists but will not change.
10 Use the drop-down list to indicate if the course is new, exists but will change, or exists but will not change.

CHANGE UNDERGRADUATE DEGREE PROGRAM 

Select one .. .. 

Select one .. .. 

Select one .. .. 

Select one .. .. 

Select one ... . 

Select one .. .. 
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New admissions language: Math ACT of 23 or above (or math placement test), or MA 109, or MA 110.
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4.2.2.2  College of Health Sciences Program 
 
4.2.2.2.1 Freshman Admission 
 
Admission to the University does not guarantee admission to the College of Health Sciences. 
Freshman applicants seeking admission to the College will be admitted if their ACT Composite 
Score is at or above the 50% on National Norms and if they have a minimum high school grade 
point average of 2.0. However, students’ continuation into the junior year will depend on the 
criteria in SR 4.2.2.2.2. For additional requirements for freshman admission to Medical 
Laboratory Science, see SR 4.2.2.2.5. [US: 11/11/2019] 
 
4.2.2.2.2 University of Kentucky Student Admission 
 
Completion of the required number of hours of academic credit does not guarantee admission to 
an undergraduate degree program in the College of Health Sciences. Admission to any program 
is dependent upon the availability of resources for implementation of quality instruction, and the 
number of students admitted will be limited by these considerations.  
 
Students will be admitted to the professional program on the basis of their University cumulative 
grade point average and other criteria indicating potential for becoming successful health 
science professionals (e.g., Health Science grade point average, freshman entrance scores, 
grades in key courses, references, and personality inventories). 
 
4.2.2.2.3 Transfer Student Admission 
 
Admission to the University as a transfer student does not guarantee admission to an 
undergraduate degree program in the College of Health Sciences. In addition to meeting the 
University's requirements for admissions from a community college or from another institution, 
and, in addition to the conditions stated in Senate regulations for changing from one University 
college to another, applicants seeking to transfer to an undergraduate degree program in the 
College of Health Sciences will be considered on the basis of their cumulative collegiate grade 
point average and the criteria described in SR 4.2.2.2.2 above. 
 
4.2.2.2.4 Application Deadlines 
 
The deadline for application for admission for the fall semester into the Medical Laboratory 
Sciences, Communications Disorders, Health Administration and Physician Assistant Studies 
programs is February 1st. The deadline for application for admission in the spring semester for 
the Medical Laboratory Sciences program is October 1st. [SC: 4/24/95] 
 
4.2.2.2.5 Medical Laboratory Science Admissions Policy 
 
Incoming freshmen must have satisfied the prerequisites for taking CHE 105 or CHE 109. [US: 
11/11/2019] Students must achieve an overall (cumulative) GPA of 2.5 and successfully pass all 
prerequisite courses.  
 
4.2.2.2.6 Health Science Educator Admissions Policy 
 
Entry is permitted to those who complete an accredited program in a health science discipline 
and the Preprofessional Requirements. 



 
An overall grade-point average of 2.0 on a 4.0 quality point scale in all course work attempted, 
as computed by the University Admissions Office. 
 
References from three health professionals. [US: 4/11/83] 
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Substantive Change Checklist1 
 

Substantive change, according to the Commission on Colleges of the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACSCOC or SACS), is “a 
significant modification or expansion of the nature and scope of an accredited institution.”2  Substantive change is a federal concept, based in 
the regulations of the U.S. Department of Education,3 which regional accreditors are required to enforce. 
 
The University is required to submit any substantive change to SACS for review, and in some cases approval, prior to implementation of such 
substantive change.  As noted by SACS: 
 

 “if an institution fails to follow the substantive change policy and procedures of the Commission on Colleges, it 
may lose its Title IV funding or be required by the U.S. Department of Education to reimburse it for money received by 
the institution for programs related to the unreported substantive change. In addition, the institution’s case may be 
referred to the Commission for the imposition of a sanction or for removal from membership.”4 

 
Checklist Instructions: To ensure substantive change compliance, individuals should complete the checklist on the following pages in the early 
stages of any proposal (e.g. new degree program, new certificate program, etc.) or curricular revision. Upon completion, the form must be 
submitted to the associate provost for institutional effectiveness or designee by e-mail to InstiutionalEffectiveness@uky.edu. A determination as 
to whether the proposed program or changes to the existing program  constitutes a substantive change will be made within seven (7) business 
days of receipt and  next steps will be communicated accordingly. 
 
Questions concerning substantive change are to be directed to Dr. GT Lineberry, associate provost for faculty advancement and institutional 
effectiveness (gt.lineberry@uky.edu) and Dr. Mia Alexander-Snow, director of planning and institutional effectiveness (mia.alexander-snow@uky.edu). 

                                                   
1 Adapted, with appreciation, from University of Virginia’s  “Substantive Change Checklist.” 
2 See Substantive Change for Accredited Institutions of the Commission on Colleges: Policy Statement, p. 1. 
3 See 34 C.F.R. § 602.22. 
4 See Substantive Change for Accredited Institutions of the Commission on Colleges: Policy Statement, p. 9. 
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University of Kentucky 
Substantive Change Checklist 

 
Instructions: Email completed form to: InstitutionalEffectiveness@uky.edu, Subject line: SACSCOC Sub Change 
Questions concerning substantive change are to be directed to Dr. GT Lineberry, associate provost for faculty advancement and institutional 
effectiveness (gt.lineberry@uky.edu) and Dr. Mia Alexander-Snow, director of planning and institutional effectiveness (mia.alexander-snow@uky.edu). 

 
 
Name of Proposed Program/Action:  Medical Laboratory Science/Pre-MLS students are Chem 105/109 ready in fall of freshman year 
 
Total number of Credit hours for Degree Completion (if applicable):120 
 
Total number of Credit Hours for Program Major (if applicable): 60 
 
Sponsoring College: College of Health Sciences    
 
College/Department Contact: Kim Campbell, Interim Program Director Medical Laboratory Science     
 
Date: January 3, 2019 
 

SACSCOC Substantive Change Items Yes No 
Don’t 
Know 

Provide brief explanation  
(if necessary) 

The proposed program or existing program requires a 
number of new faculty. 

 x   

More than 25 percent of the required courses for the 
proposed or existing program are new. 

 x   

More than 50 percent of the required courses for the 
proposed or existing program are new. 

 x   

The proposed or existing program requires new library or 
other learning resources. 

 x   
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SACSCOC Substantive Change Items Yes No 
Don’t 
Know 

Provide brief explanation  
(if necessary) 

The proposed or existing program requires new equipment or 
facilities. 

 x   

The proposed or existing program requires a new resource 
base. 

 x   

The proposed or existing program will initiate a branch 
campus. 

 x   

The proposed or existing program will initiate a dual degree 
program with another institution. 

 x   

The proposed or existing program will initiate a joint degree 
program with another institution. 

 x   

The proposed or existing program will initiate a certificate 
program?  (if yes, answer the following) 

 x   

• Will the proposed certificate program utilize existing 
courses? 

    

• Will the proposed certificate program be offered at a 
new off-Grounds site? 

    

• Does the proposed certificate program represent a 
significant departure from     
     previously approved programs? 

    

The proposed or existing program will be initiated at a new 
off-Grounds site? (if yes, answer the following) 

 x   

• Will a student be able to earn 50 percent or more of 
program credits at the site? 

    

• Will a student be able to earn 25 to 49 percent of 
program credits at the site? 
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SACSCOC Substantive Change Items Yes No 
Don’t 
Know 

Provide brief explanation  
(if necessary) 

• Will a student be able to earn 24 percent or less of 
program credits at the site? 

    

The proposed or existing program will be at an existing off-
Grounds site? (if yes, answer the following) 

 x   

• Does the proposed program represent a significant 
departure from previously approved programs [at the 
existing site]? 

    

The proposed or existing program will be offered via distance 
education. (if yes, answer the following) 

 x   

• Will more than 50 percent of the program be offered 
via distance education? 

    

• Will 25-49 percent of the program be offered via 
distance education? 

    

• Will less than 25 percent of the program be offered 
via distance education? 

    

The proposed or existing program or courses will be initiated 
through contractual agreement or consortium. 

 x   

The proposed or existing program will relocate an existing 
off-Grounds site. 

 x   

The change to the existing program will significantly alter the 
length of the currently approved program.  

 x   

The proposed or existing program will initiate a degree 
completion program. 

 x   

The proposed program will close an existing program.  x   

  
 
 



From: noreply@qualtrics-survey.com
To: Campbell, Kim
Subject: Substantive Change Decision
Date: Monday, January 07, 2019 3:49:02 PM

Dear Kim Campbell, 
Thank you for your email regarding the proposed program change(s) to Medical Laboratory Science,
Bachelor's​ (51.1005).  
My email will serve 2 purposes:  1.) Next steps for SACSCOC, and 2.) Verification and notification that you
have contacted OSPIE—a Senate requirement for proposal approval.

1.       Next steps for SACSCOC:  None required 
2.        Verification that OSPIE has reviewed the proposal: Based on the proposal documentation

presented and Substantive Change Checklist, the proposed program changes (refer to list below) are
not substantive changes as defined by the University or SACSCOC, the university's regional accreditor.
Therefore, no additional information is required by the Office of Strategic Planning & Institutional
Effectiveness at this time. The proposed program change(s) may move forward in accordance with
college and university-level approval processes.

Description of Proposed Change(s):
· The change to the Medical Laboratory Science program would be that the Pre-Medical Laboratory Science
(MLS) students enter in the fall of their freshman year Chem 105/109 ready. This would set students up for
success in the MLS program and keep them aligned with their graduation date.

Should you have questions or concerns about UK’s substantive change policy and its procedures, please do not
hesitate contacting our office.
Office of Strategic Planning & Institutional Effectiveness
University of Kentucky
Visit the Institutional Effectiveness Website: https://proxy.qualtrics.com/proxy/?
url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.uky.edu%2Fie&token=w%2BXHkAS0tASxS4xDceQ8e0MxnHdJ2Eu4smnkDcYodCE%3D

mailto:noreply@qualtrics-survey.com
mailto:kim.campbell@uky.edu
https://proxy.qualtrics.com/proxy/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.uky.edu%2Fie&token=w%2BXHkAS0tASxS4xDceQ8e0MxnHdJ2Eu4smnkDcYodCE%3D
https://proxy.qualtrics.com/proxy/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.uky.edu%2Fie&token=w%2BXHkAS0tASxS4xDceQ8e0MxnHdJ2Eu4smnkDcYodCE%3D



